
CITY OF OAKLAND 
 

 
Cultural Affairs Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda  
Monday, October 26, 2020 

4:00 – 7:00 PM 
 
 
Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, all members of the Cultural 
Affairs Commission and Cultural Affairs Division will join the meeting via 
phone/video conference and no teleconference locations are required. 
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
 
https://zoom.us/j/95032792436 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +14086380968,,95032792436#  or +16699006833,,95032792436#  
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or 
+1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592  
Webinar ID: 950 3279 2436 
    International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/aebXtRlm6C 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: DUE TO THE SUSPENSION OF THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE ALL PUBLIC 
COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS WILL BE TAKEN UNDER AGENDA ITEM 6.   
 
There are three ways to submit public comments. � eComment. To send your comment directly to Cultural 
Affairs Commission staff BEFORE the meeting via email NBalram@oaklandca.gov � To comment by 
Zoom video conference, click the ³Raise Your Hand´ button to request to speak when Public Comment is 
being taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to comment, and after the allotted 
time, re-muted. Instructions on how to ³Raise Your Hand´ is available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-
us/articles/205566129 - Raise-Hand-In-Webinar. � To comment by phone, please call on one of the above 
listed phone numbers. You will be prompted to ³Raise Your Hand´ by pressing ³*9´ to speak when Public 
Comment is taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to comment, and after the 
allotted time, re-muted. Please unmute yourself by pressing *6. If you have any questions, please email 
Neha Balram, Program Analyst for the Cultural Affairs Commission at NBalram@oaklandca.gov. 

https://zoom.us/j/95032792436
https://zoom.us/u/aebXtRlm6C
mailto:nbalram@oaklandca.gov
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129
mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov


 
Cultural Affairs Commission                                                             October 26, 2020 

 
 

 
 

Cultural Affairs Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

Monday, October 26, 2020 
4:00 – 7:00 PM 

 
AGENDA 

 
Roll Call/Call to Order  
 
1. Welcome & Acknowledgement of Land  
2. Action Item: Approval of Minutes from September 29, 2020  
3. Call to Presence  
4. Cultural Affairs Division Manager’s Report  
5. Update on Cultural Site Visits  
6. Public Comment  
7. Ad-Hoc Team Report Out & Discussion  

x Ad Hoc Team Community Cultural Development  
x Ad Hoc Team Revenue Streams & Advocacy  
x Ad Hoc Team Covid-19 Recovery & Re-imagine  

8. Artist Spotlight: James Cagney   
9. Announcements  
10. Closing  

 
Next regular meeting: January 25, 2021 via Teleconference 

Adjourn  

 

Oakland Cultural Affairs Division of the Economic & Workforce Development Department  
 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612  

www.oaklandculturalarts.org 
 

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/


 
Cultural Affairs Commission                                                             October 26, 2020 

 
 

This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodations or to 
request American Sign Language (ASL), Cantonese, Mandarin, or Spanish language interpreter, please 
email NBalram@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238-4949 Or 711 (for Relay Service) at least five (5) business 
days before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a courtesy to 
attendees with chemical sensitivities.  
 
Esta reunión es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con 
discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en español, Cantones, mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) 
por favor envié un correo electrónico a NBalram@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-4949 o al 711 para 
servicio de retransmisión (Relay service) por lo menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión. Se le pide de 
favor que no use perfumes a esta reunión como cortesía para los que tienen sensibilidad a los productos 
químicos. Gracias.  
 
會場有㐺合㍯椅出理孙施澞需要殘障㍜助設施, 猲寉, 獾班琕寉, 粵铅或國語翻譯服務, 請在會㆟前五

個猠作 天㟁㒑 NBalram@oaklandca.gov 或致㟁 (510) 238‐4949或 

711 (㟁話傳㐩服務)澞請避免塗㢑琭㾇產品，參加者可 能對化學成分敏感澞 
 
Ĉӏa ÿiӇm tә chӭc cuӝc hӑp có ÿѭӡng dành riêng cho xe lăn. ĈӇ yêu cҫu các phѭѫng tiӋn hӛ trӧ phөc vө 
ngѭӡi khuyӃt tұt hoһc yêu cҫu th{ng dӏch viên ASL, tiӃng Quҧng Ĉ{ng, tiӃng Quan Thoҥi hoһc tiӃng Tây 
Ban Nha, vui lòng gӱi email ÿӃn ÿӏa chӍ NBalram@oaklandca.gov hoһc gӑi ÿӃn sӕ (510) 238-4949 hoһc 
711 (vӟi Dӏch vө TiӃp âm) ít nhҩt năm (5) ngày làm viӋc trѭӟc khi cuӝc hӑp diӉn ra.Vui lòng kh{ng sӱ 
dөng các sҧn phҭm có m�i thѫm khi tham gia cuӝc hӑp này nhѭ mӝt phép lӏch sӵ ÿӕi vӟi nhӳng ngѭӡi 
tham dӵ nhҥy cҧm ÿӕi vӟi các chҩt hóa hӑc. 
 
Cultural Affairs Division - Economic & Workforce Development Department  
Cultural Affairs Commission Secretary – Neha Balram  
Phone: (510) 238-4949 
Recorded Agenda: (510) 238-2386  
Telecommunications Relay Service: 711  
 

 

mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov
mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov
mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov
mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov


James Cagney

My father’s blood followed the current of the street
    spawned, too—apparently.

Any time daddy wasn’t home, he’d be
     Down The Street
had a secret life there
 where they  breathed blue   90-proof air.

In those rooms, 
 his heart defrosted 
� � � FLUFOHG�KLV�FKHVW�� OLNH�D�FDWƓVK

Down The Street  was some 9 blocks south-
DQG�D�UHVHUYRLU�RI�ƓOWK, to my mother’s taste.
Bottom feeding old drunks noodling nothing

 In an open garage
 A designated RV
 A momma-free living room

Drunks from my dad’s longshoreman days. 
 Haggard and greying drunks
  Falling bones and bullshit drunks

A grapevine of drunks
 A bullpen of drunks
  A stagger of drunks

Burdened with crossroad prophecy in blues harmonica

Waggling in like bees from fresh nectar juke joints

From the hour school let out 
till long after the sun    hung over    a noisy, belligerent sea.

A kind of sea shimmered between the old men

A black whisky sea
a sky latticed with Lightnin’
Hopkins a murder of Old Crow bourbon 

              unscrewed and squawking

____

*Toguna is a Dogon Meeting House For Older Men. Built with a low roof, you’re encouraged to sit within. Anyone who rises to 
his feet in anger or excitement hits his head on the beams and is quickly returned to a state of calm.

Oakland-native James Cagney is the author of Black Steel Magnolias In The Hour of Chaos 
Theory, out from Nomadic Press and winner of the PEN Oakland 2019 Josephine Miles Award. 
<RX�FDQ�ƓQG�PRUH�RI�KLV�ZULWLQJ�DW�WKHGLUW\UDW�EORJ�

TOGUNA* AT 61ST AND MARKET

author portrait by Arthur Johnstone



 

 

 
 

Cultural Affairs Commission 
Regular Meeting – Minutes  

Tuesday, September 29, 2020 
4:00 – 6:30 PM 

 
Members in Attendance: Diane Sanchez (Chair), Kev Choice (Vice Chair), Roy Chan, 
Jennifer Easton, J.K. Fowler, Michelle Mush Lee, Michael Orange, Richard Raya, Charmin 
Roundtree-Baaqee, Vanessa Whang, Theo Aytchan Williams  
Members Absent:   
Staff Present: Roberto Bedoya, Neha Balram, Jim MacIlvaine, Denise Pate, Kristen 
Zaremba  
Guests: Randolph Belle (Black Cultural Zone and RBA Creative), Jean Marie Durant 
(Oakland Art Murmur), Damon Rowden, MSN, RN (SambaFunk!), Eileen Ng (Alameda 
County Public Health Department), Tureeda Mikell  
 
1. Welcome & Acknowledgement of Land  

Commission Chair Sanchez opened the meeting by welcoming staff, members of the  
public, and guest speakers. Chair Sanchez read a statement acknowledging the 
territory of Huichin by naming it as the unceded land of the Chochenyo Ohlone.  

2. Action Item: Approval of Minutes from July 27, 2020  
Motion to approve the minutes from July 27 with the noted edits made by 
Commissioner Whang; seconded by Commission Vice Chair Choice. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

3. Call to Presence  
Commissioner Raya led the group in an exercise where the group was asked to 
reflect silently on the following questions: 

x What is the story of your life right now? What are some of the recurring 
themes or narratives you find yourself confronting the past several weeks or 
months? 

x What is one piece of advice a trusted friend would give you right now?  
x How does today fit into your story? 

4. Cultural Affairs Division Manager’s Report  
Roberto Bedoya provided an update on Cultural Affairs staff projects and 
commented on the following items:  



 

 

a. Cultural Funding Program – Financial resources for Oakland Artists and Arts 
Organizations since March 2020. Fund Total: $993,300  

x Round One: Organizational Assistance, Second-year grant awards to 
be approved at the October 20, 2020 Council Meeting - $643,300 

x Round Two: Neighborhood Voices for Organizations and 
Neighborhood Voices for Individual Artists awards to be approved at 
a January 2021 Council Meeting - $350,000  

b. Belonging in Oakland: A Just City Fund – A new multi-year program that 
turns to Oakland’s cultural practitioners of color to radically reimagine a 
racially just city. In Year One of the program, Reflect & Reimagine grants will 
support breathing space and idea generation for what a just Oakland could 
look like, feel like, and be like. Fund Total: $300,000 

x 113 applications received  
x 12 Reflect & Reimagine grants in the amount $25,000 per grant  

c. East Bay/Oakland Relief Fund for Individuals in the Arts - A pooled fund  
led by Kenneth Rainin Foundation together with Akonadi Foundation; City of 
Berkeley, Berkeley Civic Arts Program; City of Oakland, Cultural Affairs 
Division; Richard Diebenkorn Foundation; Fleishhacker Foundation; Gerbode 
Foundation; William and Flora Hewlett Foundation; Nion McEvoy and Leslie 
Berriman; Oakland Covid-19 Relief Fund; San Francisco Foundation, Shuler-
Heimburger Family Fund at East Bay Community Foundation; Phyllis C. Wattis 
Foundation; and individual donors. 
Fund Total: $416,850 

x 286 grants awarded   
d. Oakland CARES Act Funds – Cultural Affairs Division received $1.8 Million 

funds from Federal Government CARES Act. The City of Oakland launched the 
Oakland CARES Fund for Artists and Arts Nonprofits. Distribution of this 
Covid-19 Relief Fund is through a partnership between the City of Oakland’s 
Economic & Workforce Development Department, Cultural Affairs Division 
and the Center for Cultural Innovation. CARES Arts Fund Total: $1,425,000 

x Grant award size for arts nonprofits: Up to $20,000 each 
x Grant award size for individual artists: Up to $3,000 each 

5. Update on Cultural Site Visits  
Vice Chair Choice explained that part of the Commissioner’s formal role is to attend 
arts and culture events in the City, including grantee events. He noted that future 
Commission meetings will include an opportunity for Commissioners to share 
cultural events they have attended recently. Staff is developing new online 
platforms, including a virtual event calendar, to track event attendance and access a 
list of current and past grantees. Commissioners took turns listing arts, culture, and 
community events they recently attended.  

6. Public Comment 
The following members of the public made comments: Lyz Luke and Indi McCasey  

7. Ad-Hoc Team: Covid-19 Recovery & Re-imagine  



 

 

Commissioner Lee led a presentation about the progress and direction of the Covid-
19 Recovery & Re-Imagine Ad-Hoc Team. She noted that the Team’s priority is to 
“Strengthen Oakland's Cultural Infrastructure & Jobs Programs for Cultural 
Workers”. She said that the Team has researched cities and artists who have 
adapted public performances to Covid-19 safety protocols and made note of 
potential barriers and challenges for Oakland artists and performers. Vice Chair 
Choice provided an update on the state of Oakland venues, noting performance 
venues that have closed in 2020 or are facing closure. The Team is interested in 
exploring the following questions: What will it take to restore cultural experiences? 
How to re-assess Oakland’s cultural infrastructure since Covid-19? What 
harms/hurdles experienced to professional, artistic, creative work? What new skills 
are needed to adapt to a Covid-19 world?  

8. Invited Speakers on Covid-19 and Impacts on the Cultural Sector  
x Oakland Art Murmur Board President, Jean Marie Durant  
x Black Cultural Zone and RBA Creative, Randolph Belle 
x SambaFunk! Board Member, Damon Rowden, MSN, RN  
x Alameda County Public Health Department, Eileen Ng 

9. Public Comment  
The following members of the public made comments: Lisa Bullwinkel, Chris 
Ullsperger, and Robin Green-yeh.   

10. Commissioner Discussion Period   
The Commissioners engaged in a discussion about the presentations from the guest 
speakers and reflected on the following questions: 

x What role do Oakland’s cultural workers and artists play in influencing how 
our communities come together to share in cultural experiences that are 
safe, creative, inspired and adhere to Alameda County health guidelines?  

x What is our role as Commissioners to ensure that the voices and expertise of 
artists and cultural workers are considered and consulted as the county and 
city moves toward a process of reintegrating live performance, music, 
theater, dance, visual art, film and more? 

x What are the aspects of cultural experiences that we would like to pay 
special attention to (the art of gathering that we hope to preserve while still 
being safe)? 

11. Artist Spotlight: Tureeda Mikell 
Commissioner Fowler introduced poet Tureeda Mikell, who recited her poem called 
“The Tale Tells of Genocide”.  
12. Announcements 
13. Closing 
Commission Chair Sanchez thanked the Commissioners and the public for participating 
and staff and KTOP for their support and assistance.  

The meeting adjourned at 6:45 PM  

 



Tureeda Mikell

Memory is an insurance policy against loss, against loss, against loss
The cruelest thing you can do to a people is take their memory, take their memory, take their memory
                                 
August 2015 Saturn’s day, daybreak soul wakes, eyes zoom, 
scans the room, stops. Looks at a book title facing the bed.

            Claiming Earth: Race, Rage, Rape, and Redemption, by Haki Madhubuti. 

Book stares     I glare       remembering      something when
27 bones move behind that scene    pick up another title     exposing

 We Charge Genocide—Crime of Government Against the Negro People 

242-page petition delivered to the United Nations by Eleanor Roosevelt, 
wife of the former president, Franklin D. Roosevelt, 
Signed by Paul Robeson, Civil Rights activist in 1950. 

       Memory is an insurance policy against loss, against loss, against loss
              Cruelest thing you can do to a people is take their memory, take their memory take their memory!

How did I forget?  I remember purchasing it.
 
Spirit says, “Find We Charge Genocide on the net” 
Find Sandra Bland’s mother’s FaceBook page post, “We Charge Genocide”  
 
One day later, the Native American event displays table brochures cascading, 
 
 WE CHARGE GENOCIDE, WE CHARGE GENOCIDE, WE CHARGE GENOCIDE
 
3 Days after, attend Tongo Eisen Martin book signing, titled We Charge Genocide II

     Memory is an insurance policy against loss, Memory is an insurance policy against loss 
      The cruelest thing you can do to a people is take their memory, take their memory, take their memory!

Remembered 1981, James Baldwin saying, “Something very brutal must be said about this great 
melancholy nation of ours, and if you don’t believe me, you can ask the Indians.  
The intentions of this country’s government has always been, genocidal.”   

Remembered the year after, Kwame Ture, saying,
“Education in this country makes you stupid, but what is worse, it makes you arrogant in your 
stupidity, The Revolution is coming whether you want it or not, we must be politically prepared for 
what is coming!”     

$QG�LQ����������\HDUV�DIWHU�WKH�ƓUVW�SHWLWLRQ�RI�We Charge Genocide was signed and delivered, 
the late great President, Hugo Chavez, of Venezuela addressed the U.N. stating, 
“The hegemonic pretensions of the American Empire are placing at risk 
the very survival of the human species. We continue to warn you about this danger and we 
appeal  to the people of the United States and the world to halt this threat, which is like 
a sword hanging over our heads.”
            And this one nation under a god that despises life answered,  

“And Think NOT I come to bring peace on earth, but a sword!”

     Memory is an insurance policy against loss, Memory is an insurance policy against loss
                The cruelest thing you can do to a people is take their memory!

Educator, consultant, poet, griot/elocutionist/story medicine woman, Tureeda Mikell began 
working the healing arts in 1977 via poetry, storytelling, and QiGong energy therapy. Mikell is the 
founder of Tree of Life Health Literacy Project and works in collaboration with California Poets in 
the Schools.

In 2018, Mikell was the Eth-Noh-Tec NuWa Delegate from the US to Beijing, China, in Gengcun 
Village of renowned storytellers in collaboration with the University of Beijing on mission to heal 
cultural boundaries. Mikell has been a featured reader with Kim Shuck, poet laureate of San 
Francisco, California, presented Al Young (named poet laureate of California in 2015) with the 
lifetime achievement award at the 2018 Berkeley Poetry Festival, and has opened for Saul Williams 
at Grand Lake Theater in Oakland. She is a BAWP Fellow at UC Berkeley’s Graduate School of 
Education, has worked and read with the late Amiri Baraka via EastSide Arts Alliance, and is one of 
the co-founders of the Black Writers Conference in Otisville, New York. 

+HU�ƓUVW�IXOO�OHQJWK�ERRN�RI�SRHWU\��Synchronicity: The Oracle of Sun Medicine, was published by 
Oakland-based Nomadic Press in 2020.

THE TALE TELLS OF GENOCIDE

author portrait by Arthur Johnstone


